LIBERTY CITY COUNCIL - REGULAR SESSION AGENDA
May 13*, 2024, at 6:30 PM

Rosewood Center - 419 E Main St. Liberty, SC 29657

e Welcome and Call to Order Mayor Erica Romo Woods

° Invocation

e Pledge of Allegiance

e RollCall-

- Robbie Shoenleben (Ward 1) - Lavant Padgett (Ward 2) - Daniel Graybeal (Ward 3)

-Jeff Massie (Ward 4) - Rhonda Whitaker (At- Large) - Zachary Arms (At- Large)

¢ Mayor Announcements:

-Mayor Woods will address various topics.

e Recognitions:
-Recognition of Liberty youth in Eagle Scouts.

e  Proclamations:
-Building Safety Month (May)
- Municipal Clerk Week (May 5th- May 11th)
- Public Service Recognition Week (May 5t-May 11th)

¢ Citizens wishing to address the City Council:

-Speakers must reside within city limits, are allowed 3 minutes in total, and must have signed up priorto 4:30 pm on
05/10/2024.

e Approval of Minutes:

-April 8th, 2024- Regular Session

e Unfinished/ Old Business: (2nd Readings)

None
e New Business: (1st Readings & Resolutions):

-2024-02, 100% Annexation for Parcel Number: 4088-15-64-9389- 109 Wiley Rd. Liberty, SC 29657
-2024-03, 100% Annexation for Parcel Number: 4097-00-54-7766- 201 Reeves St. Liberty, SC 29657
- Council will consider approval of a location for art sculpture by Duncan Burns.

15T READING OF THE 2024-2025 ANNUAL BUDGET WILL BE JUNE 4TH 2024- SPECIAL CALLED, FOLLOWING THE PUBLIC HEARING.



¢ City Administrator Report

-Administrator’s Report/ City Activities Report

e  City Council Remarks:

-Robbie Shoenleben (Ward 1)

- Lavant Padgett (Ward 2)

Daniel Graybeal (Ward 3)

Jeff Massie (Ward 4)

Rhonda Whitaker (At- Large)

- Zachary Arms (At- Large)

e  Motion to enter Executive Session:

1. S.C Code Sec. 30-4-70(a)(2). Discussion of negotiations incident to proposed contractual arrangements, discussions of a proposed
sale or purchase of property, receipt of legal advice, settlement of legal claims or discussions of the public agency's position in
adversary situations, discussion about the development of security personnel or devices.

(a) Pickens County- Contractual

2. S.C. Code Sec. 30-4-70(a)(5) Discussion of matters relating to the proposed location, expansion, or the provision of services
encouraging location or expansion of industries or other businesses in the area served by the public body.

(a) Retail Strategies- Economic Development

-City Council may or may not take action on any or all of the matters discussed in Executive Session.

¢ Adjournment

oiv¥aT To sign up to speak at the next council meeting, please email or call our Clerk of Council by 4:30 pm the

— Friday prior to the meeting.
I' I B— RTY Blocke@libertysc.com - 864-843-3177



N BUILDING
% SAFETY MONTH

Proclamation

Building Safety Month - May 2024

Whereas the City of Liberty, South Carolina, is committed to recognizing that our growth and
strength depend on the safety and essential role our homes, buildings, and infrastructure play,
both in everyday life and when disasters strike, and;

Whereas our confidence in the resilience of these buildings that make up our community is
achieved through the devotion of vigilant guardians-building safety and fire prevention officials,
architects, engineers, builders, tradespeople, design professionals, laborers, plumbers and others
in the construction industry who work year-round to ensure the safe construction of buildings,

and;

Whereas these guardians are dedicated members of the International Code Council, a nonprofit
that brings together local, state, territorial, tribal and federal officials who are experts in the
built environment to create and implement the highest-quality codes to protect us in the
buildings where we live, learn, work and play, and;

Whereas these modern building codes include safeguards to protect the public from hazards such
as hurricanes, snowstorms, tornadoes, wildland fires, floods and earthquakes, and;

Whereas Building Safety Month is sponsored by the International Code Council to remind the
public about the critical role of our communities' [argely unknown protectors of public safety-our
local code officials who assure us of safe, sustainable and affordable buildings that are essential to
our prosperity, and;

Whereas "Mission Possible," the theme for Building Safety Month 2024, encourages us all to raise
awareness about building safety on a personal, local and global scale, and;

Whereas each vyear, in observance of Building Safety Month, people all over the world are asked
to consider the commitment to improve building safety, resilience and economic investment at
home and in the community, and to acknowledge the essential service provided to all of us by
local and state building departments, fire prevention bureaus and federal agencies in protecting
lives and property.

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Erica Romo Woods, Mayor of the City of Liberty, do hereby proclaim the
month of May 2024 as Building Safety Month, this date noted the

2024. Accordingly, I encourage our citizens to join us as we participate in Building Safety Month
activities.

Erica Romo Woods, Mayor, City of Liberty
Attest:

(Seal)

Bailee Locke, Clerk of Council




Proclamation

55th ANNUAL PROFESSIONAL MUNICIPAL CLERKS WEEX
May 5 - 11, 2024

Whereas, The Office of the Professional Municipal Clerk, a time honored and vital part of local
government exists throughout the world, and

Whereas, The Office of the Professional Municipal Clerk is the oldest among public servants, and
Whereas, The Office of the Professional Municipal Clerk provides the professional [ink between the
citizens, the local governing bodies and agencies of government at other levels, and

Whereas, Professional Municipal Clerks have pledged to be ever mindful of their neutrality and
impartiality, rendering equal service to all.

Whereas, The Professional Municipal Clerk serves as the information center on functions of local
government and community.

Whereas, Professional Municipal Clerks continually strive to improve the administration of the affairs
of the Office of the Professional Municipal Clerk through participation in education programs,
seminars, workshops and the annual meetings of their state, provincial, county and international
_professional organizations.

Whereas, It is most appropriate that we recognize the accomplishments of the Office of the Professional
Municipal Clerk.

Now, Therefore, I, Frica Romo Woods, Mayor of the City of Liberty, do

recognize the week of May 5 through 11, 2024, as Professional Municipal Clerks Week, and further
extend appreciation to our Professional Municipal Clerk, Bailee Locke, and to all Professional
Municipal Clerks for the vital services they perform and their exemplary dedication to the

communities they represent.

Dated this day of

Frica Romo Woods, Mayor
City of Liberty

Attest:
Bailee Locke, Clerk of Council




I_———_———I

Proclamation

PUBLIC SERVICE RECOGNITION WEEX

Designating the week of May 5 -11, 2024 as “Public Service Recognition Week”

WHEREAS, Americans are served every single day by public servants at the federal,
state, county, and city levels; and

WHEREAS, the public employees of the City of Liberty are committed to exhibiting the
highest standards of professional excellence, creativity, skill, and customer service; and

WHEREAS, in often difficult circumstances, our civil servants work to protect and
improve the quality of life for our residents, businesses, and visitors; and

WHEREAS, the efficiency of government relies on public employees who provide
services in the quality and quantity required and expected by the public; and

WHEREAS, the City of Liberty recognizes the generous contributions of time and talent
by public employees, and the importance of the services they render; and

WHEREAS, Public Service Recognition Week has been celebrated the first week of May
since 1985 to honor those who serve our nation as federal, state, county, and local
government employees.

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Erica Romo Woods, Mayor of the City of Liberty, South
Carolina herby proclaim May 5-11, 2024 as Public Service Recognition Week and
encourage all citizens to join in appreciation of our public employees past and present,
who, by their faithful and loyal devotion to their responsibilities, have rendered a
dedicated service to their communities.

PROCLAIMED this ___________ day of May, 2024
Seal

Frica Romo Woods, Mayor
City of Liberty

Attest:

Bailee Locke, Clerk of Council




MINUTES
LIBERTY CITY COUNCIL - REGULAR SESSION AGENDA

April 8", 2024, at 6:30 PM

Rosewood Center - 419 E Main St. Liberty, SC 29657

e Welcome and Call to Order Mayor Erica Romo Woods at 6:30 pm.

@ Invocation was given by Councilmember Graybeal.

@ Pledge of Allegiance

e Roll Call-
- Robbie Shoenleben (Ward 1) ___Present
- Lavant Padgett (Ward 2) ___Present
- Daniel Graybeal (Ward 3) ___Present
- Jeff Massie (Ward 4) __Present _
- Rhonda Whitaker (At- Large) __ _Present__
- Zachary Arms (At- Large) ___Present

@ Mayor Announcements:

NONE

-Certificate of Recognition- Liberty Middle School Girls’ Basketball Team.

- Mayor Woods will address various topics.

* Congratulations to the Liberty Middle School girls' basketball team for winning the Anderson, Oconee, Pickens Division
Two Tournament Championship.

* Come out and join me at the Chalk and Talk this Saturday, the 13th, from 10 noon. Come talk to the mayor regarding
any matters.

* This Saturday, Councilmember Massie will organize our flower drop at Starlin Park from 8 to 2. We are asking for
donations. The list of excepted flowers is on our Facebook page. The plant day will be next Saturday, the 20th, starting
at 9 a.m.

* In addition to the flower drop, we are having our drawing competition. When making a flower donation, please bring a
drawing of flowers for children 13 and younger. The top three winners will be displayed in City Hall.

*We have had two new businesses open in the last month. The Nail Loft and Lizzie Sue’s Country Corner. Make sure to
welcome them to our community.

* We have also had two businesses downtown that are getting some TLC and 1 business that has sold. So, we have lots of
exciting things happening downtown.

* We have had great turnouts for all our town hall meetings regarding our Comprehensive Plan. We had one at the Scoop
and Hops and Harvest. There were lots of great discussions. Thank you all that came. Our next one will be on April 20th
at 6:30 om in the Courtyard. This is our last one. So, make sure to come on out and give us your input.

* Pickens County held a Press Conference regarding broadband. We are super excited about this. We have a meeting later
to discuss where it will be available in city limits.

* Last Saturday the recreation held a color run in honor of sleep and heavenly peace. All proceeds will be going to
children’s beds to get them off the floor. We had a great time. Lots of people from all over. Thank you, Alecia Dover and
her family, Amber Philips, and Potters Clay Church, for helping and being involved. They met their goal of $1,200. The
building beds day will be Saturday the 20t" from 9-1.

* Congratulations, Kaitlyn Sizemore, on graduating from the Pickens County Leadership Academy.

* Congratulations to Robbie Shoenleben and me on graduating from the Municipal Elected Officials Institute and the
Advanced Municipal Elected Officials Institute.

* Last but not least, | would like to encourage all to support our arts in liberty at the Pickens County Performing Arts
Center. | have seen several shows there and they are always beautiful. You can go see what is coming up at
pickenstheater.com

Citizens wishing to address the City Council:
-Speakers must reside within city limits, are allowed 3 minutes, and signed up before 4:30 pm on 04/05/2024.

Approval of Minutes:
-March 11th, 2024- Regular Session
Motion: Councilmember Arms, Second: Councilmember Whitaker, No Discussion, Vote: unanimous 7/7

Presentation:
-Retail Strategies- 2023 overview with 2024 expected goals.



@® Unfinished/ Old Business: (2nd Readings)
-None

@® New Business: (1st Readings & Resolutions):
-None

@® City Administrator Report- Philip Trotter
-Administrator’s Report/ City Activities Report

@ City Council Remarks:
- Robbie Shoenleben (Ward 1)- No Remarks

- Lavant Padgett (Ward 2)—The new batting cage in Lake Woods height is used a lot. Thank you to whoever made that great call.

- Daniel Graybeal (Ward 3- Thank you to all who were a part of our town hall at Hops and Harvest. There were around 30 people.
Positive feedback. There was a lot of discussion regarding vehicle safety. One spot in particular is “Trill Hill” We need to look
into speed bumps for that hill. Also, | would like to thank ACOG for facilitating the meeting.

- Jeff Massie (Ward 4)—0’dale St. has had some drainage issues. | have reported this to Philip, who is actively working on it. Thank
you, Zach Arms and Rhonda Whitaker, for helping pull weeds in the courtyard to get it ready for our flower planting day. Make sure
to come to the Chalk and Talk and Flower Drop off this Saturday, the 13th.

- Rhonda Whitaker (At—Large)—Thank you all who came to the community clean-up day. Thank you, Andrea Wagner, for
coming and helping. We appreciate all the citizens who come out and help. | would also like to second Daniels' remark
about Trill Hill. It is very dangerous, and we need to look into speed bumps.

- Zachary Arms (At- Large)- Daniel and | had a great town hall meeting. Big thank you to Chip and Ben from ACOG, who came
and helped facilitate our meeting. That was very helpful. There was great talk regarding housing. Be sure to take the survey
and come to our last Comprehensive Plan Town Hall meeting on April 20%. | would love to see a line item on street safety for
speed bumps to help make our roads safer. Thank you to our Recreation program for the Color Run. This truly helps our
community. We did this at the High School in the past, and one of our own was affected by this personally. It is truly a great
cause. Thank you, Andrea Wagner, for taking the time to show up to our meetings and events and taking notes for our
community.

@® Executive Session:
-Mayor Woods removed this from the agenda for a later date due to our city administrator being absent due to illness.

@® Adjournment
Motion: Councilmember Graybeal, Second: Councilmember Massie, No Discussion, Vote: Unanimous 7/7

Date Approved:
Mayor, City of Liberty
eIty of To sign up to speak at the next council meeting, please email or call our Clerk of Council by 4:30 pm on the
LI BERTY Friday prior to the meeting.

Blocke@libertysc.com - 864-843-3177



CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
ORDINANCE #2024-02

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, ANNEXING
INTO THE CITY LIMITS A PARCEL OF CONTIGUOUS REAL PROPERTY LOCATED AT 109 WILEY
ROAD (TMS #4088-15-64-9389).

WHEREAS, Your Choice Home Buyers, LLC, a limited liability corporation registered with the State
of South Carolina and the 100% freeholder of a parcel of real property located at 109 Wiley Road,
situated in Pickens County, South Carolina, encompassing approximately .9990 acres, and
bearing TMS #4088-15-64-9389 (the “Property”), has filed a petition for annexation with the City
of Liberty; and,

WHEREAS, the Property is contiguous to and abuts real property located within the City of
Liberty; and,

WHEREAS, pursuant to S.C. Code §5-3-150(3), any area or property that is contiguous to a
municipality may be annexed by that municipality upon receipt of a petition signed by 100
percent of the freeholders of that area or property; and,

WHEREAS, the Liberty City Council has received and carefully considered the Property’s
freeholder petition; and,

WHEREAS, it appearing in the best interests of the City, its residents, and businesses, as well as
the City’s future residents and businesses, for the Property to be annexed into the City limits;
and,

NOW THEREFORE, it is hereby found, decided, declared, and ordained by the City Council of the
City of Liberty, South Carolina, duly assembled and with a quorum present, that:

1. The recitals above are incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein;

2. The Property is contiguous to, touches directly and substantially upon, and shares a
common boundary with property located within the City limits of the City of Liberty;

3. The Property is located in a geographically unified area in relation to the City and to the
property within the City that it abuts;

4. The Property is located in the City’s water service area;



100 PERCENT PETITION FORM

TO THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LIBERTY:

The undersigned, being 100 percent of the freeholders owning 100 percent of the
assessed value of the property in the contiguous territory described below and shown
on the attached plat or map, hereby petition for annexation of said territory to the City of
Liberty by ordinance effective as soon as hereafter as possible, pursuant to South
Carolina Section 5-3-150(3).

The territory to be annexed is described as follows: </ 0881SL,49 3¢9
as shown on Pickens County GIS map and shown as Exhibit “A” attached.

1)

Sig nature:/‘vmv/ /L—/ (must owner or authorized agent )
Print Name @A\/‘ﬁb C st A1) Date_ 5 / Al 2(/{"
Signature: (must be owner or authorized agent)
Print Name: Date

Street Address of Property: |09 Wileqy €d. , Liberty, SC 29671

ABOVE PORTION MUST BE COMPLETELY FILLED OUT BY VERIFIED OWNER

Jedededededekkddededhhkkhhkdddhkdkdkdkdkhkhhdkhkhkdkhkhkkhkhkhkhdkdhkkdkhkhkhikhhkhkhkhkhkhhkhkhkhhrhkhhhhhrhhkhkhhkhkhhhhhhhhhhkhhrhhhhhk
FOR MUNICIPAL USE% %i
Petition received by: [)‘M Date: S / ’ / gaf

Description and Ownership Verified by: FWH P MW Date: - / % Lﬁé]’
Recommendation: Council to annex property into City of Liberty,
to be zoned: Sod

By: 7% @ Date: 5/’/ 2 '7/

First Reading Date Second Reading Date

Approved Denied
(Date) (Date)




' Pickens County, SC

Overview

P
Legend
Parcels

911 Address
Yearly Sales

B 2024

B 2023

B 2022

B 2021

B 2020
Municipalities

= Roads

Parcel ID 4088-15-64-9389 Account Purged Ownership YOUR CHOICE Documents
Account No R0094349 Type MH HOME BUYERS Date Price Doc Vacant or
Property 109 WILEY ERD Class Double LLC Improved
Address LIBERTY Wide 9ROSEMARY LN 2/13/2024 $0 2658//151 Vacant
District Al12-Liberty Acreage 0.99 GREENVILLE,SC 1/30/2024 $78,000 2639//105 Vacant
Brief N/SIDECAMPGROUNDRD  LEA 0010 29615-0000
Tax Description PLAT 44/93 P/O PLAT 617/71 Code

(Note: Not tobeusedonlegal Value  $0

documents)

Date created: 5/2/2024
Last Data Uploaded: 5/2/2024 6:30:58 AM

Developed by" Schneider

GEOSPATIAL



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
) DECLARATION OF ANNEXATION

COUNTY OF PICKENS ) COVENANT
THIS DECLARATION OF ANNEXATION COVENANT for property with a Pickens County
Parcel Number: 408815649389 & Account Numberzgmﬂgg)_‘ﬁ____for a

piece of land in Pickens County, made this i) day of, April : 2(&‘;{ between
Your Choice Home Buyers, LLC

Owner/s:

Address: 109 Wiley Rd, Liberty, SC 29657

( ) A corporation, incorporated under the laws of the State of and
organized under the name of . The signature below is that of

an authorized agent of the corporation with full and complete powers to bind the corporation
) to this agreement

& A general or limited partnership, limited liability company or limited liability partnership
operating under the name of South Carolina . The signature below is that of
an authorized agent of the company or partnership with full and complete powers to bind the
same to this agreement.

( ) Individual(s) having ownership of the property as described above in fee simple, life estate.
or in any other designation as set forth in the Code of Laws of the State of South Carolina
1976, as amended and/or as set forth through judicial interpretation in South Carolina
property case law.

hereinafter known and referred to as "Owner", and the City of Liberty. South Carolina hereinafter

known and referred to as "City"

WITNESSETH:
WHEREAS, the Subject Property, described in the above referenced deed and/or plat. belonging to
the undersigned property owner is located outside the City's corporate limits;
WHEREAS, the City is authorized to require annexation as a contractual condition for city services
(Sloan v. City of Comway, 2001);
WHEREAS, the City has a duty to its citizens to ensure the future well-being of the City and its
services (Childs v. Columbia, 1911);
WHEREAS, the Subject Property is located in an area in which annexation to the City is or may
become appropriate;
WHEREAS, Owner specilically agrees that he will sign any and every annexation petition which
relates to the Subject Property when presented with such petition;
WHEREAS, Owner will inform any subsequent owner of the Subject Property that the obligations
created hereunder continue and run with the land; and
WHEREAS, Owner hereby expressly imposes a RESTRICTIVE COVENANT upon the Subject
Property as set forth herein.




iy of Liberty Annexation Covenant

NOW THEREFORE. in consideration of the toregoing and the promises. undertakings and mutual
agreements contained herein. Owner and the Cuy covenant and agree as foro

I Recitals Incorporated. The above recitals are hereby incorporated in and made a part of this
sareement as fully as if set forth verbatim herein. These recitals are true and correct and the parties
are bound thereby. By signing this Agreement. Owner and City acknowledge reading.
understanding and agreeing to all of these recnals

2. Covenants by Owner. Owner makes the following covenants. warranties. agreements and
representations. each of which shall be deemed matenial to this Agreement:

A Owner covenants and agrees that he will sign any and every annexation pettion which
relates to the Subject Property (“Annexation Petition”™) immediately upon presentment of suci:
petition. As used in this Agreement. an Annexation Petition shall be construed to relate to the
suniect Property if the property to be annexed pursuant to and described in the petiton imcludes the
Subiect Property or any portion thercof. Owner acknowledges that a purpose of this Agreement is (o
ensure. as a material benefit and consideration to the City. Owner’s full and complete cooperation
with any effort to annex the Subject Property: and Owner agrees. that upon request by the City.
Owner will do. exccute. acknowledge and deliver, all such further acts. agreements. and assurances
&~ may be requested and reasonably necessary tor the full completion and consummation ol the
purpose contemplated herein. These further acts shall specifically include. but are not limited to,
signing successive Annexation Petitions. in the event prior annexation efforts are unsuccessiul
Owner warrants and covenants that Owner has not and will not subdivide or otherwise manipulate
the Subject Property, or other property owned or previously owned by Owner. 1o hinder or impede
the City’s ability to annex the Subject Property.

B. Owner agrees that the obligations contained in this Agreement shall continue in full toree
and effect until the Subject Property. in its entirety. has been successfully annexed into unl
continuousiy lies within the corporate fumits of the City.

C. Owner covenants and warrants that he is the sole owner in tee simple absolute of the Subject
Property. Further. Owner covenants and warrants that he will not transfer. alienate. devise.
encumber. or otherwise affect title 1o the Subject Property for a period of ten days from the date o
this Agreement. which will allow the City ume to have this Agreement and plat recorded n the
Office of the Register of Deeds for Pickens County. South Carolina. Owner will inform any
subsequent owner of the Subject Property. or any part thercof. that the obligations contained m this
Agreement continue and run with the land.

Restrictive Covenant. Owner hereby imposes upon the Subject Property a RESTRICTIVE
COVENANT requiring that future owners of the Subject Property. or any part thereot. be bound by
the same terms. conditions and covenants as are set {orth in this Agreement. This Restricine
Covenant shall continue in full force and effect until the Subject Property. in its entirety. has been
uccesstully annexed into and lies continuously within the municipal limits of the City. Any and
every future owner of the Subject Property, or any part thereof. is bound by the terms contained in
this Agreement by acceptance of a deed to Subject Property or any part mnere

Recordation of Plat. Owner herchy expressly agrees and directs that this Agreement and any plat
referenced herein be recorded in the real estate records in the Office of the Register of Deeds for the
County of Pickens. State of South Carolina. s0 as to give record notice to any future prospective
purchaser that this Agreement is an obligation upon the land and runs with the fand.

5




<ty of Laberty Annexation Covenant

Description of Property. This Agreement and RESTRICTIVE COVENANT applies to the
property of Owner as is more fully described on the noted deed/s and praws

Grant of Power of Attorney. In the event Owner fails to meet the obligations tmposed herem and
dues not sign any Annexation Petition upon request, Owner hereby irrevocably appomnts the City
Administrator o the City of Liberty. Attorney in Fact for Owner of Subject Property with full
power to sign any Annexation Petitton when requested by the Cas

Default; Remedies. The failure of any person or entity having any right. title or interest in the
Subject Property. or any portion thereot, including the Owner and his respective herrs, successors.,
successors in title and assigns or the City. to bring an action to enforce this Covenant. shall not
operate as a waiver of the right to do so for any later subsequent violations or the nght to enforce
any other part of this Covenant at any future time. The failure ol any person or entity having uny
cieht. title or nterest in the Subject Property. or any portion thereof . including the Owner and his
respective heirs. successors, successors  title and assigns or the City to exercise or to delay in
exercising any right or remedy available hereunder or at law or in equity shall not operate as «
waiver. Notice of default or violation shall not be deemed as a condition precedent to the exercise
of any right or remedy available hereunder or at law or i equity. Should any person or entity
having any right. title or interest in the Subject Property. or any portion thereof. ncluding the
Owner and their respective hetrs. successors. successors in title and assigns or the City fail wo bring
an action for enforcement of this Covenant or scek any other remedy allowed at faw or in equity
«en snall not create any liability tor the recovery of damages tor the fatlure 1o so act.

Remedies Cumulative. Every right und remedy provided in this Agreement is distinet from and
cumulative o every other right or remedy under this Agreement or available at law or in equity. The
provision of certain rights and remedics in this Agreement does not abrogate, limit or atfect any
rights or remedies as provided at law or in equuy. Every night and remedy may be exercised
concurrently. independently or successively.

Exhibits Incorporated by Reference. All exhibits referenced in this Agreement are incorporaied

herein as integral parts of this Agreement and shall be considered reiterated herein as fully as if such
provistons had been set forth verbatiny in this Agreement.

Copies. A photostatic or other reproduction of this document shall be as eftective. valid and
conclusive as the ornginal

Warranty. Owner warrants that he is the owner of the within Subject Property and has the authority
weexecute this Covenant.

Entire Agreement. The parties acknowledge that no representations or inducements have been
made other than those expressed herein: and that this Agreement supersedes any and all prinr
memoranda. correspondence, conversations, negotiations and agreements pertaiming to the matters

herein expressed.

Modification. The terms of this Agreement may be modified in whole or m art only by a writtes
instrument signed by Owner and the City. Any oral agreement to modify this Agreement shall be
void and of no force and effect

Captions. The captions and headings of the Paragraphs of this Agreement are for convenience only
and may not be used to interpret or define the provisions of this Agreement.

— TR T By e TS Boineiciin o iv o umg rorwegmegm e iz 2 ]



==y

-y of Liberty Annexation Covenant

No Waiver. No waiver of a breach of any of the covenants or promises of this Agreement shall be
construed as a waiver of any succeeding breach of the sume or other covenant or promise

Severability. In the event that any provision or clause of this Agreement contlicts with any
appuicabic faw. the other provisions of this Agreement shall be given effect as tully as possible
srthout the conflicting provision. and to this end the provisions of this Agreement are dectared to be
severable.

References Herein. Wherever appropriate. all words herein in the male gender shall be decmed b
include the female or neuter gender. all singular words shall include the plural. and all plural words
shiadl inciude the sigular.

Attornevs Fees. In the event Owner defaults on any of his obligations hereunder, the City shall
be entitled to recover costs and attornevs' fees incurred in the enforcement of this agreement.

Successors and Assigns. The covenants and agreements contained m this Agreement and the
abligations created hereunder shall enure to the benefit of and be binding on the City. Owner and all
heirs. successors and assigns of Owner to the Subject Property, or any part thereof.

Governing Law and Forum. The validity. construction and effect of this Agrecment shall be
soverned by the laws of the State of South Carolina. and the parties hereby consent to the exclusive
wrisdiction of the courts of the State of South Carolina for resolution of any dispute arising
hereunder. Venue shall be vested solely in Pickens County, South Caroling.

Sealed Instrument. Owner agrees that by signing below he intends to place his hands and scal~
upon this Agrecment and this Agreement shall be considered to be a sealed instrument

Effective Date. This Agrecment shall be effective upon the date ol the st party atlixing his
signature.

[SIGNATURE PAGE(S) TO FOLLOW |



Cuy of Liberty Annexation Covenant

WITNESSES: OWNER-

L Sl

%itness s1gns here
Printed Nux]\&:W_Qﬂw

it PARTAE~S
Dute Signed:_4 /24 /ﬂ‘/

WITNESSES: OWNER(S):

Witness stens here
Printed Name.
Tide: B
Date Signed:

Notary signs here a@id betfOw

Printed Name: Mg_ﬁl_%&&y

STATE OF Lok Covvlins ) ACKNOWLEDGMENT
COUNTY OF Breenville )

The foregoing instrument was signed and acknowledged this Zday of (2024
before me the undersigned Notary, and 1 do hereby certifv that the above named Grantor
personally appeared before me and acknowledged the due execution of the foregoing
instrument in accordance with South Carolina Code Ann. 26-3-10 ¢t seq. The
signatory/grantor acknowledging was known to me personally, or the person
acknowledging presented satisfactory evidence that he/she was the person described in
and who executed the instrument. It the grantor is a corporation or partnership, the
signatory acknowledged s/he held the position/title set forthin the instrument/certificate,
he signed the instrument on behalf of the corporation/partnership by proper authority.
and the instrument was the act of the corporatior\/pc:‘r‘t‘l‘\ﬁ‘ﬁl}:jg'
/,

/j va A fo_,‘?’\gk\ssrof’%

14 0 -~ S o =

Notary Public for J ih s ";-g N?I‘i’?)'g,“'_‘ér:
My Commission Expires: Ol 202 :—,“,’\:'.,opUBuc ;S
‘47 .5,@6 \.'. X~




i@ﬂ]}{. DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY
INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE
CINCINNATI OH 45999-0023

Date of this notice: 04-28-2023

Employer Identification Number:
92-3763147

Form: SS-4

Number of this notice: CP 575 B
YOUR CHOICE HOME BUYERS LLC
CASEY MUNRO MBR
141 TRACTION ST UNIT 57 For assistance you may call us at:
GREENVILLE, SC 29611 1-800-829-4933

IF YOU WRITE, ATTACH THE
STUB AT THE END OF THIS NOTICE.

WE ASSIGNED YOU AN EMPLOYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER

Thank you for applying for an Employer Identification Number (EIN). We assigned you
EIN 92-3763147. This EIN will identify you, your business accounts, tax returns, and
documents, even if you have no employees. Please keep this notice in your permanent
records.

Taxpayers request an EIN for their business. Some taxpayers receive CP575 notices when
another person has stolen their identity and are opening a business using their information.
If you did not apply for this EIN, please contact us at the phone number or address listed
on the top of this notice.

When filing tax documents, making payments, or replying to any related correspondence,
it is very important that you use your EIN and complete name and address exactly as shown
above. Any variation may cause a delay in processing, result in incorrect information in
your account, or even cause you to be assigned more than one EIN. If the information is
not correct as shown above, please make the correction using the attached tear-off stub
and return it to us.

Based on the information received from you or your representative, you must file
the following forms by the dates shown.

Form 1065 03/15/2024

If you have questions about the forms or the due dates shown, you can call us at
the phone number or write to us at the address shown at the top of this notice. If you
need help in determining your annual accounting period (tax year), see Publication 538,
Accounting Periods and Methods.

We assigned you a tax classification (corporation, partnership, estate, trust, EPMF,
etc.) based on information obtained from you or your representative. It is not a legal
determination of your tax classification, and is not binding on the IRS. If you want a
legal determination of your tax classification, you may request a private letter ruling
from the IRS under the guidelines in Revenue Procedure 2020-1, 2020-1 I.R.B. 1 (or
superseding Revenue Procedure for the year at issue). Note: Certain tax classification
elections can be requested by filing Form 8832, Entity Classification Election.

See Form 8832 and its instructions for additional information.

A limited liability company (LLC) may file Form 8832, Entity Classification
Election, and elect to be classified as an association taxable as a corporation. If
the LLC is eligible to be treated as a corporation that meets certain tests and it
will be electing S corporation status, it must timely file Form 2553, Election by a
Small Business Corporation. The LLC will be treated as a corporation as of the
effective date of the S corporation election and does not need to file Form 8832.



(IRS USE ONLY) 575B 04-28-2023 YOUR B 9999999999 SS-4

IMPORTANT REMINDERS :

* Keep a copy of this notice in your permanent records. This notice is issued only
one time and the IRS will not be able to generate a duplicate copy for you. You
may give a copy of this document to anyone asking for proof of your EIN.

* Use this EIN and your name exactly as they appear at the top of this notice on all
your federal tax forms.

* Refer to this EIN on your tax-related correspondence and documents.
* Provide future officers of your organization with a copy of this notice.

Your name control associated with this EIN is YOUR. You will need to provide this
information along with your EIN, if you file your returns electronically.

Safeguard your EIN by referring to Publication 4557, Safeguarding Taxpayer
Data: A Guide for Your Business.

You can get any of the forms or publications mentioned in this letter by
visiting our website at www.irs.gov/forms-pubs or by calling 800-TAX-FORM
(800-829-3676) .

If you have questions about your EIN, you can contact us at the phone number
or address listed at the top of this notice. If you write, please tear off the
stub at the bottom of this notice and include it with your letter.

Thank you for your cooperation.

Keep this part for your records. CP 575 B (Rev. 7-2007)

Return this part with any correspondence
so we may identify your account. Please CP 575 B
correct any errors in your name or address.

9999999999

Your Telephone Number Best Time to Call DATE OF THIS NOTICE: 04-28-2023
( ) N EMPLOYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER: 92-3763147

FORM: SsS-4 NOBOD
INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE YOUR CHOICE HOME BUYERS LLC
CINCINNATI OH 45999-0023 CASEY MUNRO MBR

Amannamamamimmirmaminnm: 141 TRACTION ST UNIT 57
GREENVILLE, SC 29611



1350

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA SC-1070
DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
. - e (Rev. 06/15/23)
Corporate Registration Filing 3543
Requirements

File Number: 114592753
Letter ID: L0026869406

Date Issued:  August 14, 2023

YOUR CHOICE HOME BUYERS LLC
#5015

330 E COFFEE ST

GREENVILLE SC 29601-2804

Your Corporate Income Tax account is registered with the South Carolina Department of Revenue (SCDOR).

FEIN: **-***3147

What you need to know:

* You must file a Corporate Income Tax return, including Schedule D, if you are transacting or conducting business in
South Carolina.

*  Your Corporate Income Tax return, Corporate income Tax payment, and License Fee (minimum of $25) are due
annually after the end of your business year, even if you have no income to report.

* The CL-1, Initial Annual Report of Corporations, and the $25 License Fee are due to the South Carolina Secretary of
State (SCSOS) within 60 days of doing business in South Carolina. For more information, see SC Code Section
12-20-40(b), available at dor.sc.gov/policy.

« Discontinuing your business does not eliminate your filing requirement. After dissolving or withdrawing your charter
with the SCSOS, you must file a final Corporate Income Tax return with the SCDOR.

What you need to do:

«  File your Corporate Income Tax return electronically. It's faster and more secure! Visit dor.sc.gov/biz-services to
learn more about your electronic filing options.

« Pay online using our free secure tax portal, MyDORWAY, at dor.sc.gov/pay. Select Business Income Tax
Payment to get started.

+ If the SCDOR registered your Corporate Tax account in error, upload a copy of your SS-4 to
dor.sc.gov/doc-upload. You'll need your FEIN and the Letter ID printed on this notice to get started.

* Include your FEIN on all returns, payments, and correspondence you send to the SCDOR.

For more information about Corporate Income Tax, visit dor.sc.gov/tax/corporate. Corporate Tax tutorials are available
at dor.sc.gov/ted/tutorials.



Filing ID: 230428-1013588

Filing Date: 04/28/2023

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
SECRETARY OF STATE

ARTICLES OF ORGANIZATION
Limited Liability Company ~ Domestic

The undersigned delivers the following articles of organization to form a South Carolina limited liability company pursuant
to S.C. Code of Laws Section 33-44-202 and Section 33-44-203.

1.

4.

@

The name of the limited liability company (Company ending must be included in name*)

Your Choice Home Buyers, LLC

*Note: The name of the limited liability company must contain one of the following endings: “limited liability company” or “limited
company” or the abbreviation “L.L.C.", “LLC”, “L.C.”, “LC"”, or “Ltd. Co.”

The address of the initial designated office of the limited liability company in South Carolina is
141 Traction St. Unit 57

(Street Address)

Greenville, South Carolina 29611
(City, State, Zip Code)

The initial agent for service of process is

Andrew Frederick
(Name)

(Signature of Agent)

And the street address in South Carolina for this initial agent for service of process is:
312 Wheatfield Ct.

(Street Address)

Travelers Rest South Carolina 29690
) (Zip Code)

List the name and address of each organizer. Only one organizer is required, but you may have more than one.

Dave Costello

(Name)
141 Traction St. Unit 57

(Street Address)

Greenville, South Carolina 29611
(City, State, Zip Code)

Form Revised by South Carolina Secretary of State, August 2016
SC Secretary of State
Mark Hammond



Your Choice Home Buyers, LLC

Name of Limited Liability Company

(b)

{Name)

(Street Address)

(City, State, Zip Code)

5. E Check this box only if the company is to be a term company. If the company is a term company, provide the
term specified.

6. D Check this box only if management of the limited liability company is vested in a manager or managers. If this
company is to be managed by managers, include the name and address of each initial manager.

(@

(Name)

(Street Address)

(City, State, Zip Code)
(b)

(Name)

(Street Address)

(City, State, Zip Code)

7. D Check this box only if one or more of the members of the company are to be liable for its debts and obligations
under Section 33-44-303(c). If one or more members are so liable, specify which members, and for which debts,
obligations or liabilities such members are liable in their capacity as members. This provision is optional and does
not have to be completed.

8. Unless a delayed effective date is specified, these articles will be effective when endorsed for filing by the Secretary of
State. Specify any delayed effective date and time

Form Revised by South Carolina Secretary of State, August 2016



Your Choice Home Buyers, LLC

Name of Limited Liability Company

9. Any other provisions not consistent with law which the organizers determine to include, including any provisions that
are required or are permitted to be set forth in the limited liability company operating agreement may be included on a
separate attachment. Please make reference to this section if you include a separate attachment.

10. Each organizer listed under number 4 must sign.

Dave Costello

Signature of Organizer

Date: 04/28/2023

Signature of Organizer

Date:

Form Revised by South Carolina Secretary of State, August 2016



]
(4

DocuSign Envelope ID: 243AC853-228A-4BD0-81D3-086F4EDB7039

OPERATING AGREEMENT
OF

Your Choice Home Buyers, LLC

THIS LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY OPERATING AGREEMENT (“Operating
Agreement”) has been made and entered into by and among the persons who are members
(individually “Member” or collectively “Members”) of Your Choice Home Buyers, LLC, a South
Carolina limited liability company (“Company”) for the purpose of setting forth the rights and
obligations of each Member and of the Company formed pursuant to the provisions of the South
Carolina Uniform Limited Liability Company Act of 1996, S.C. Code Ann. §33-44-101 et seq.
(the “Act”). This Operating Agreement is entered into by the undersigned Members, effective as

of the date of its execution.
RECITALS

A. The Company was formed on April 28, 2023, subject to the laws of the State of South Carolina;
and
B. The Members have agreed upon the terms and conditions that will govern the Company and

their relationship and wish to reduce such agreement to writing.

In consideration of the mutual agreements and obligations contained in this Operating
Agreement, and other valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which is acknowledged,

the Members agree as follows:



{

DocuSign Envelope ID: 243AC853-228A-4BD0-81D3-086F4EDB7039

ARTICLE I - DEFINITIONS

When used in this Operating Agreement, the terms below shall have the following

meanings:

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

“Act” means the South Carolina Uniform Limited Liability Company Act of 1996, S.C.
Code Ann. §33-44-101 et seq., as amended from time to time, (or the corresponding

provision(s) of any succeeding law).

“Capital Contribution(s)” means the amount of cash and the agreed value of property,
services rendered, or a promissory note or other obligation to contribute cash or property
or to perform services contributed by the Member for such Member's interest in the
Company, equal to the sum of the Member's initial Capital Contributions, plus the
Member's additional Capital Contributions, if any, made pursuant to Sections 4.1 and 4.2,
respectively, less payments or distributions made pursuant to Section 5.1, which are

deemed a return of capital under the Act.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and the regulations promulgated
thereunder, as amended from time to time (or any corresponding provision or provisions

of succeeding law).

“Member” means a person who:

(a) Is a member of the Company as provided by the terms of this Operating Agreement;

and

(b) Has not dissociated from the Company under S.C. Code Ann. § 33-44-601.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 243AC853-228A-4BD0-81D3-086F4EDB7039

1.5

1.6

1.7

“Person” means an individual, business corporation, nonprofit corporation, partnership,
limited partnership, limited liability company, limited cooperative association,
unincorporated nonprofit association, statutory trust, business trust, common law business
trust, estate, trust, association, joint venture, public corporation, government or
governmental subdivision, agency, or instrumentality, or another legal or commercial

entity.

“Articles of Organization” means the articles of organization required under S.C. Code

Ann. § 33-44-202. The term includes the articles of organization as amended or restated.

“Authorized representative” means:

(a) In the case of the formation of a limited liability company, a person authorized by a
prospective member of the limited liability company to form the company by
executing and filing its articles of organization with the South Carolina Secretary of

State.

(b) Inthe case of an existing limited liability company, with respect to the execution and
filing of a record with the South Carolina Secretary of State or taking any other action

required or authorized under the Act:

i. A manager of a manager-managed limited liability company who is authorized

to do so;

ii. A member of a member-managed limited liability company who is authorized

to do so; or

iii. An agent or officer of the limited liability company who is granted the authority

to do so by such a manager or such a member, pursuant to the Operating



DocuSign Envelope ID: 243AC853-228A-4BD0-81D3-086F4EDB7039

1.8

1.9

1.10

1.12

2.1

2.2

Agreement of the limited liability company or pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. § 33-

44-401.

“Manager” means a person, whether or not a member of a manager-managed company,

who is vested with authority under S.C. Code Ann. § 33-44-301.

“Manager-managed company” means a limited liability company which is so designated

in its articles of organization.

“Member-managed company” means a limited liability company other than a manager-

managed company.

“Majority Interest Vote” means a vote in which each Member’s vote is weighted based on
their percentage ownership in the Company. Any action subject to a Majority Interest Vote
will only be taken if Members owning more than fifty percent (50%) of the Company vote

in favor of such action.

“Unanimous Interest Vote” means a vote requiring all of the Members. Any action subject
to a Unanimous Interest Vote will only be taken if Members owning one hundred percent

(100%) of the Company vote in favor of such action.

ARTICLE II - FORMATION

Organization. The Members hereby organize the Company as a South Carolina limited

liability company pursuant to the provisions of the Act.

Effective Date. This Operating Agreement shall take effect from the date of execution by

the undersigned Members.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 243AC853-228A-4BD0-81D3-086F4EDB7039

23

24

2.5

2.6

Operating Agreement: Invalid Provisions. The Members, by executing this Operating

Agreement, hereby agree to the terms and conditions of this Operating Agreement as they
may, from time to time, be amended. To the extent any provision of this Operating
Agreement is prohibited or ineffective under the Act, this Operating Agreement shall be
deemed to be amended to the least extent necessary to make this Operating Agreement
effective under the Act. In the event the Act is subsequently amended or interpreted in
such a way as to validate any provision of this Operating Agreement that was formerly
invalid, such provision shall be considered to be valid from the effective date of such

amendment or interpretation.

Registered Agent. The name and location of the Registered Agent of the Company shall

be: Andrew Frederick, 312 Wheatfield Ct. Travelers Rest, SC 29690.

Term. The Company shall continue at will, unless:
(a) Members vote for dissolution by a Majority Interest Vote;

(b) Any event which makes it unlawful for the business of the Company to be carried on

by the Members; or

(c) Any other event causing dissolution of this Limited Liability Company under the laws

of the State of South Carolina.

Continuance of Company. Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 2.5, in the event of

an occurrence described in Article 2.5(c), if there is at least one remaining Member, said
remaining Member shall have the right to continue the business of the Company. Such

right can be exercised by the written vote of the remaining Member within ninety (90) days



DocuSign Envelope ID: 243AC853-228A-4BD0-81D3-086F4EDB7039

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

after the occurrence of an event described in Article 2.5(c). If not so exercised, the right

of the Member to continue the business of the Company may expire if that Member desires.

ARTICLE III - PURPOSE; NATURE OF BUSINESS

Purpose: Nature of Business. The purpose of the Company shall be to engage in the

acquisition, sale, and management of real estate and any other lawful purpose.

Powers. The Company shall have all powers of a limited liability company under the Act
and the power and authority to do all things necessary or convenient to accomplish its

purpose and operate its business as described in Section 3.1 hereof.

ARTICLE 1V - MEMBERS AND CONTRIBUTIONS

Members and Initial Contribution. The name, address, and value of the initial Contribution

of each Member is set forth on Schedule A, attached hereto.

Additional Contributions. The Members shall have an obligation to make additional

Contributions to the Company if the Members so decide by a Unanimous Interest Vote.

Membership Interest. Each Member shall have the following initial membership interest in

the Company: Abundant Estate Holdings, LLC shall have a fifty-one percent (51%)
ownership interest in the Company. DCC Holdings, LLC shall have a forty-nine percent

(49%) ownership interest in the Company.

Admission of Additional Members. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this

Agreement or by law, no additional members may be admitted as Members or Managers
to the Company through issuance by the Company of a new interest in the Company

without the prior, written consent of all the Members.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 243AC853-228A-4BD0-81D3-086F4EDB7039

5.1

52

5.3

ARTICLE V — DISTRIBUTIONS AND ALLOCATIONS

Distributions and Allocations. All distributions of cash or other assets of the Company

shall be made and paid to the Members in proportion to their respective Membership
Interests. The Members shall determine and distribute available funds at least quarterly or
at more frequent intervals as they see fit. Available funds, as referred to herein, shall mean
the net cash of the Company available after appropriate provision for expenses and
liabilities, as determined by the Members. Distributions in liquidation of the Company or
in liquidation of a Member's interest, shall be made in accordance with the positive capital
account balances pursuant to Treasury Regulation 1.704-1(b)(2)(ii)(b)(2). To the extent a
Member shall have a negative capital account balance, there shall be a qualified income

offset as set forth in Treasury Regulation 1.704-1(b)(2)(ii)(d).

Withdrawal Right. No member shall be entitled to withdraw any part of his or her Capital

Account or to receive any distributions from the Company, except as expressly provided

in this Agreement.

Profits and Losses. The Net Profits and Net Losses of the Company shall be the net profits

and net losses of the Company as determined for Federal income tax purposes. The Net
Profits and Net Losses of the Company and each item of income, gain, loss, deduction or
credit shall be allocated to the Members in proportion to their respective Membership

Interests.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 243AC853-228A-4BD0-81D3-086F4EDB7039

6.1

6.2

7.1

ARTICLE VI - TAXATION

Income Tax Reporting. The Members are aware of the income tax consequences of the

allocations made by Article V hereof and hereby agree to be bound by the provisions of
Atrticle V hereof in reporting the Member's share of Company income and loss for federal

and state income tax purposes.

Disregarded as an Entity. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary and

only for purposes of federal and, if applicable, state income tax purposes, the Company
shall be disregarded as an entity separate from the Members for such federal and state
income tax purposes, unless and until the Members cause the Company to file an election

under the Code to be classified as an association taxable as a corporation.

ARTICLE VII - RIGHTS, POWER, AND AUTHORITY OF THE MEMBERS

Management by the Member(s). The Members shall have the full and exclusive right,

power, and authority to manage the affairs of the Company and to bind the Company, to
make all decisions with respect thereto, and to do or cause to be done any and all acts or
things deemed by the Members to be necessary, appropriate, or desirable to carry out or
further the business of the Company. If there is more than one Member, all decisions and
actions of the Members, except as otherwise specified in this Agreement, shall be made by
Majority Interest Vote of the Members, whether acting at a meeting or by written consent.

Specifically:

(a) Any legally binding agreement must have a Majority Interest Vote of the Members.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 243AC853-228A-4BD0-81D3-086F4EDB7039

7.2

7.3

(b) Any decision that involves a lease, an acquisition of another company, hiring of
employees or subcontractors, acquisition or sale of physical assets, a contract for goods
and/or services must have a Majority Interest Vote of the Members.

(c) Any decision that involves a loan to the Company or the pledging of Company assets
as collateral must have a Unanimous Interest Vote of the Members.

(d) Any decision that involves the settlement of litigation to which the Company is a party
or confession of judgment by the Company must have a Unanimous Interest Vote of
the Members.

(e) If a Member disagrees with a decision or proposed decision, such Member may call a
vote to decide the course of action. If any Member calls a vote, a Majority Interest Vote,
or such higher voting threshold as specified in this Agreement, must be completed to

take an action on behalf of the Company, and such vote must be in writing.

Member's Right to Information. Each Member shall have reasonable access to the

Company's records at the Company's principal place of business. The right to access
provides the opportunity to inspect and copy records during ordinary business hours. The
Company will impose a reasonable charge, limited to the costs of labor and material, for

copies of such records furnished.

Partition Right. No Member will have the right to require partition of the Company
property or to compel any sale of the Company's assets or any sale of a deceased Member's
interest in the Company's assets without a written Majority Interest Vote in favor of such

action, notwithstanding any provision of law to the contrary.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 243AC853-228A-4BD0-81D3-086F4EDB7039

7.4

7.5

Mediation. If a dispute among the Members arises out of or relating to this Agreement, or
the breach thereof, the Members agree to negotiate in good faith among themselves to
resolve the dispute. The Members also agree to engage the Company’s accounting, legal
and other professional advisors if doing so will assist in resolving the dispute. If the
Members cannot settle the dispute through negotiation and before invoking the deadlock
resolution provision in Section 7.5, the Members agree to attempt to resolve the dispute
through voluntary participation in mediation administered (i) if the Members mutually
agree, by such disinterested and competent person as the Members shall select or (ii) in the
absence of mutual agreement on choice of a mediator, pursuant to the commercial
mediation rules of the American Arbitration Association. Fees applicable to the
administration of the mediation and the mediator’s fee shall be paid equally by all

Members.

Deadlock Resolution Provision. If the Members (i) either hold equal membership interests
in the Company, (ii) remain divided on a material issue following negotiation and
mediation as provided above, and (iii) cannot otherwise mutually agree on the conduct of
the business and affairs of the Company, a deadlock between the Members shall be deemed
to have occurred. Upon the occurrence of a deadlock, one Member (hereinafter referred to
as the "Offeror") may elect to purchase the membership interest in the Company of the
other Member (hereinafter referred to as the “Offeree”) at a price which the Offeror
believes to be the fair market value of the Offeree’s membership interest in the Company.
The Offeror shall notify the Offeree in writing of the offer to purchase, stating the total
purchase price for the Offeree’s membership interest in and the terms of such purchase. At

the Offeree’s option, the Offeree shall have the right to either (i) buy the Offeror’s

10



DocuSign Envelope ID: 243AC853-228A-4BD0-81D3-086F4EDB7039

7.6

8.1

membership interest in the Company at the price and on the terms contained in the
Offeror’s offer or (ii) to sell the Offeree's interest to the Offeror at the designated price and
terms. The offer, when made by the Offeror, is irrevocable for thirty (30) days. The Offeree
shall have ten (10) days from the receipt of such offer to make its election, that is, either to
buy such interest of the Offeror or to sell its own interest, notice of which shall be made in
writing executed by the Offeree and stating the nature of the election. A Member which is
obligated to purchase the interest of another Member pursuant to the provisions hereof shall
have twenty (20) days from the date of receipt of the written election from such other
Member to pay the designated price and satisfy the terms of such purchase. Should the
Member who has received an offer to sell or buy fail to make the election required herein
in a timely fashion, then such non-responding party shall be deemed to have elected and

agreed to sell or buy, as the case may be, according to the terms of the offer.

Right to sign on behalf of the Company. Abundant Estate Holdings LLC is represented by

Casey J. Munro. DCC Holdings, LLC is represented by Dave Costello. Both Casey J.
Munro and Dave Costello have the right and authority to sign agreements on behalf of Your

Choice Home Buyers, LLC and bind the company thereby.

ARTICLE VIII - DISSOLUTION AND WINDING UP

Events of Dissolution. The Company shall be dissolved upon the first to occur of: (a) the

written consent of all the Members; or (b) the entry of a decree of judicial dissolution under

the Act.

ARTICLE IX - BOOKS AND RECORDS

11



DocuSign Envelope ID: 243AC853-228A-4BD0-81D3-086F4EDB7039

9.1

9.2

10.1

10.2

Books and Records. The Members shall keep, or cause to be kept, at the principal place of

business of the Company true and correct books of account, in which every transaction of
the Company shall be entered fully and accurately. The Company's taxable and fiscal years

shall be the calendar year.

Initial Principal Office. The initial principal place of business at which the Company’s

books and records shall be maintained shall be 141 Traction Street, Unit 57 Greenville, SC

29611 or such other address as the Members may, from time to time, elect.

ARTICLE X — LIMITATION OF LIABILITY; INDEMNIFICATION

Limited Liability. Except as otherwise provided by the Act, the debts, obligations, and

liabilities of the Company, whether arising in contract, tort or otherwise, shall be solely the
debts, obligations, and liabilities of the Company, and the Members shall not be obligated
personally for any such debt, obligation, or liability of the Company solely by reason of
being a Member. The failure of the Company to observe any formalities or requirements
relating to the exercise of its powers or the management of its business or affairs under this
Operating Agreement or the Act shall not be grounds for imposing personal liability on the
Members for any debts, liabilities, or obligations of the Company. Except as otherwise
expressly required by law, the Members, in such Member's capacity as such, shall have no
liability in excess of: (a) the amount of such Member's net Capital Contributions; (b) such
Member's share of any assets and undistributed profits of the Company; and (c) the amount

of any distributions required to be returned pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. § 33-44-407.

Indemnification. The Company (including any receiver or trustee of the Company) shall,

to the fullest extent provided or allowed by law, indemnify, save harmless, and pay all

12



DocuSign Envelope ID: 243AC853-228A-4BD0-81D3-086F4EDB7039

10.3

judgments and claims against the Members and each of the Member's agents, affiliates,
heirs, legal representatives, successors and assigns (each, an “Indemnified Party") from,
against, and with respect to any and all liability, loss, damage, and expense incurred or
sustained by the Indemnified Party in connection with the business of the Company or by
reason of any act performed or omitted to be performed in connection with the activities of
the Company or in dealing with third parties on behalf of the Company, including costs
and attorneys' fees before and at trial and at all appellate levels, whether or not suit is
instituted (which attorneys' fees may be paid as incurred), and any amounts expended in
the settlement of any claims of liability, loss or damage, provided that the act or omission
of the Indemnified Party does not constitute fraud or willful misconduct by such
Indemnified Party. The Company shall not pay for any insurance covering liability of the
Members or the Members' agents, affiliates, heirs, legal representatives, or successors and
assigns, for actions or omissions for which indemnification is not permitted hereunder;
provided, however, that nothing contained herein shall preclude the Company from
purchasing and paying for such types of insurance, including extended coverage liability
and casualty and workers’ compensation, as would be customary for any Person owning,
managing and/or operating comparable property and engaged in a similar business or from
naming the Members and any of the Members' agents, affiliates, heirs, legal
representatives, successors or assigns or any Indemnified Party as additional insured parties

thereunder.

Non-Exclusive Right. The provisions of this Article X shall be in addition to and not in

limitation of any other rights of indemnification and reimbursement or limitations of

liability to which an Indemnified Party may be entitled under the Act, common law, or

13



DocuSign Envelope ID: 243AC853-228A-4BD0-81D3-086F4EDB7039

11.2

12.1

12.2

otherwise. Notwithstanding any repeal of this Article X or other amendment hereof, its
provisions shall be binding upon the Company (subject only to the exceptions above set
forth) as to any claim, loss, expense, liability, action, or damage due to or arising out of
matters which occur during or relate to the period prior to any such repeal or amendment

of this Article X.
ARTICLE XI - COMPENSATION

Member Management Fee. Any Member rendering services to the Company shall be

entitled to compensation commensurate with the value of such services if a Majority

Interest Vote of Members agree.

Reimbursement. The Company shall reimburse the Members for all direct out-of-pocket

expenses incurred by them in managing the Company if a Majority Interest Vote of

Members agree.

ARTICLE XII - BOOKKEEPING
Books. The Members shall maintain complete and accurate books of account of the
Company's affairs at the Company's principal place of business or other agreed location.
Such books shall be kept on such method of accounting as the Members shall select. The

Company's accounting period shall be the calendar year.

Member's Accounts. The Members shall maintain separate capital and distribution

accounts for each Member. Each Member's capital account shall be determined and
maintained in the manner set forth in Treasury Regulation 1.704-1(b)(2)(iv) and shall

consist of his or her initial capital contribution:

(a) increased by any additional capital contribution made by the Member;

14



DocuSign Envelope ID: 243AC853-228A-4BD0-81D3-086F4EDB7039

(b) increased by credit balances transferred from his or her distribution account to his or

her capital account;
(c) decreased by distributions to him or her in reduction of Company capital; and

(d) decreased by the Member's share of Company losses if charged to his or her capital

account.

12.3  Reports. The Members shall close the books of account after the close of each calendar
year, and shall prepare and send to each Member a statement of such Member's distributive

share of income and expense for income tax reporting purposes.

ARTICLE XIII - TRANSFER
13.1  Valuation. The value of the Company shall be the fair market value of the Company as of

the date of acceptance of offer of sale.

13.2  Proper Dissociation vs. Improper Dissociation. Member dissociations will be deemed

Proper or Improper as follows:

(a) A “Proper Dissociation” is when a Member dissociates from the Company:
(1) because of his or her own death,
(2) because of his or her own permanent disability which prevents him or her from
carrying out his or her duties with respect to the Company, or
(3) in the event his or her dissociation is otherwise deemed proper by a Majority
Interest Vote of the remaining Members.
(b) An “Improper Dissociation” is any dissociation that is not a Proper Dissociation, as

defined above.

15



DocuSign Envelope ID: 243AC853-228A-4BD0-81D3-086F4EDB7039

(1) In the event of Improper Dissociation, the value of such exiting Member’s
interest in the company, after being determined according to the procedures
herein, shall be discounted by 25%. The Members agree this discount reflects
the amount by which the value of the Company will be reduced by an Improper
Dissociation.

(2) If a Member Improperly Dissociates, within 30 days of the remaining Members
receiving notice of such dissociation, the remaining Members may, by a
Majority Interest Vote, elect to require the Improperly Dissociating Member to
sell his or her interest in the Company to the remaining Members or to the
Company. If the remaining Members invoke this right, the value of the exiting
Member’s interest in the Company shall be determined in accordance with
section 13.4 of this Agreement, as if the exiting Member had no buyer for his
or her interest.

13.3  Assignment. If at any time a Member proposes to sell, assign, or otherwise dispose of any
or all of his or her interest in the Company, the Member shall comply with the following
procedures:

(a) First, make a written offer to sell such interest at a stated price to the other Member(s).
At this point, the exiting Member may not make this intention publicly known. If the
other Members decline or fail to elect the right to buy such interest within sixty (60)
days, the exiting Member shall make a written offer to sell such interest to the
Company. If the Company declines or fails to elect the right to buy such interest within
sixty (60) days, the exiting Member may advertise its membership interest for sale as

such Member sees fit.

16



DocuSign Envelope ID: 243AC853-228A-4BD0-81D3-086F4EDB7039

(b) If after complying with 13.3(a), Member has a buyer for Member’s interest, the other
Members and/or the Company has the first right of refusal to purchase the exiting
Member’s interest for the agreed price. If there is more than one remaining Member,
remaining Members may combine funds to purchase the exiting Member’s interest.
The remaining Members and/or Company have thirty (30) days to exercise such right
of first refusal. The exiting Member must show that the potential purchaser has full
certified funds or the ability to get full certified funds before the first right of refusal
period starts.

(c) Pursuant to applicable law, the remaining Members (not including the exiting Member
or the purchaser of the exiting Member’s interest), may approve, by a Majority Interest
Vote, the sale of the exiting Member’s interest such that the purchaser is granted full
Membership rights to participate in the management and affairs of the Company,
including voting rights. If the remaining Members do not so vote to approve such sale,
then the purchaser shall only have the right to receive the share of distributions his or
her purchased interest entitles him or her to, and he or she shall have no right to
participate in the management or affairs of the Company. The exiting Member must

disclose to the purchaser if the remaining Members will not approve the sale.

13.4 Valuation of Exiting Member’s Interest. If a Member wants to exit the Company and does
not have a buyer of such Member’s interest or if the exiting Member is or has dissociated
from the Company Improperly and the remaining Members have elected, pursuant to their
rights in Section 13.2(b)(2), to require him or her to sell his or her interest in the Company
to the remaining Members or to the Company, the exiting Member will assign his or her

interest to the remaining Members or the Company according to the following procedures:

17



DocusSign Envelope ID: 243AC853-228A-4BD0-81D3-086F4EDB7039

(a) A value must be placed on the interest before it is assigned.

(b) If the exiting Member and the remaining Members do not agree on the value of that
interest, the exiting Member must pay for a certified appraiser to appraise the Company
value and the exiting Member’s interest will be assigned a value according to the
exiting Member’s interest percentage.

(c) The remaining Members must approve the certified appraiser used by the exiting
Member. Remaining Members have thirty (30) days to approve the exiting Member’s
certified appraiser. If the remaining Members disapprove of the certified appraiser,
they must show evidence demonstrating a reasonable basis for such disapproval.
Remaining Members may not stall the appraisal process by disapproving all certified
appraisers.

(d) If remaining Members disagree with the value placed on the exiting Member’s interest,
remaining Members must pay for a certified appraiser to appraise the Company value.
Such appraisal must be completed within thirty (30) days of the completion of the
exiting Member’s appraisal. Upon completion of remaining Members’ appraisal, the
exiting Member must approve such appraisal within thirty (30) days.

(e) If the exiting Member does not approve the remaining Members’ appraisal, the value
of the Company will be determined by adding both parties’ values and then dividing
the sum in half.

(f) Whether a Member dissociates Properly or Improperly, such Member shall be liable to
the Company and to the remaining Members for all amounts payable by the exiting

Member under the Operating Agreement.

18



DocusSign Envelope ID: 243AC853-228A-4BD0-81D3-086F4EDB7039

13.5

(g) If the exiting Member is Improperly Dissociating, the value of his or her interest will

be discounted by twenty-five percent (25%), as agreed herein.

Distribution of the Exiting Member’s Interest. Upon determination of the value of the

exiting member’s interest and, if such exiting member is engaging in an Improper
Dissociation, after application of the above-described discount, the value will be a debt of
the Company. Whether the Member’s dissociation is Proper or Improper, as defined above,
the Company may offset the value of the exiting Member’s interest with any amounts
payable by the exiting Member under the Operating Agreement. If the Member is
dissociating Improperly, as defined above, such Improperly Dissociating Member, in
addition to accepting the discount agreed upon in 13.2 above, shall also be liable to the
Company and to the other Members for all costs, expenses (including reasonable attorney’s
fees), and damages caused by the Improper Dissociation. The Company may offset the
value of such Improperly Dissociating Member’s interest with all such costs, expenses, and
damages. The value of his or her interest so offset and/or discounted, the exiting Member

may demand payment either at the dissolution of the Company or by the following method:

(a) Total amount due to the exiting Member shall be paid in five (5) equal, annual
installments over a five (5) year period, with interest payable according to the Internal
Revenue Service Applicable Federal Rate (AFR) Rulings as of the month preceding
the closing date of the sale of the exiting Member’s share. The AFR applicable to the
entire five (5)-year payment term shall be the mid-term AFR, with the annual period
for compounding, as stated in the IRS AFR Ruling as of the month preceding the

closing date of the sale of the exiting Member’s share. The first payment shall be due

19



DocuSign Envelope ID: 243AC853-228A-4BD0-81D3-086F4EDB7039

14.1

15.1

15.2

15.3

15.4

one (1) year from the closing date of the sale of the exiting Member’s share of the
Company, with the accrued annual interest as calculated by the Applicable Federal Rate
(AFR), as defined above.

(b) If the Company dissolves, the exiting Member will be a regular creditor and payment
will follow normal LLC dissolution payment statutes.

(c) The Company may prepay any amount owed to an exiting Member earlier than this

Agreement requires.
ARTICLE XIV - AMENDMENT

Amendment. This Operating Agreement and the Articles of Organization may not be

amended, altered, or modified, except by the unanimous written consent of the Members.
ARTICLE XV —MISCELLANEOUS

Binding Effect. This Operating Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit

of the undersigned, its legal representatives, heirs, successors, and assigns.

Applicable Laws. This Operating Agreement and the rights and duties of the Members

hereunder shall be governed by, and interpreted and construed in accordance with, the laws

of the State of South Carolina, without regard to principles of choice of law.

Headings. The article and section headings in this Operating Agreement are inserted as a
matter of convenience and are for reference only and shall not be construed to define, limit,

extend or describe the scope of this Operating Agreement or the intent of any provision.

Number and Gender. Whenever required by the context hereof, the singular shall include

the plural, and vice versa and the masculine gender shall include the feminine and neuter

genders, and vice versa.

20



DocuSign Envelope ID: 243AC853-228A-4BD0-81D3-086F4EDB7039

15.5

15.6

15.7

15.8

Tax Elections. In the event of a transfer of a Member's interest, or upon the death of a
Member, or in the event of the distribution of Company property to any party hereto, the
Company may (but need not necessarily) file an election, in accordance with Section 754
of the Code to cause the basis of the Company Property to be adjusted for Federal income

tax purposes, as provided by Sections 734 and 743 of the Code.

New Members. Each person who becomes a Member in the Company, by becoming a
Member, shall and does hereby ratify and agree to be bound by the terms and conditions

of this Operating Agreement.

Approval Rights of Member. Notwithstanding anything in this Operating Agreement to

the contrary, the following actions by the Company shall require a written consent of all

the Members:

(a) The adoption of a plan of merger or consolidation involving the Company,

(b) The purchase, lease, or acquisition of any property by the Company, other than in the

usual and regular course of business of the Company; and

(c) The sale, lease, exchange or other disposition of all or substantially all of the property
of the Company, other than in the usual and regular course of business of the

Company.

Agreement Among Members. This Agreement contains a complete statement of all of the

arrangements among the parties hereto with respect to the Company and cannot be
changed, altered, or terminated orally in any manner other than by written agreement

executed by all of the Members. There are no representations, agreements, arrangements

21



DocuSign Envelope ID: 243AC853-228A-4BD0-81D3-086F4EDB7039

or understandings, oral or written, between or among the parties hereto, relating to the

subject matter of this Agreement which are not fully expressed in this Agreement.

15.9 Conflict of this Agreement with any Prior Agreement Between or Among Members and/or

the Company. To the extent any prior agreement between or among the Members and/or

the Company is inconsistent with this agreement, the latest-executed agreement controls.

IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, this Operating Agreement has been made and executed by the

Members.

Abundant Estate Holdings, LL.C

DocuSigned by:
By:[z”“l Munro

643066D7303E402

Title: Owner
I)ate:6/27/2023

DCC Holdings, LLC

DocusSigned by:

QMQ Clotdlo
By:
Title: Co-Owner

6/27/2023

Date:

22



DocusSign Envelope ID: 243AC853-228A-4BD0-81D3-086F4EDB7039

SCHEDULE A

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTION OF THE MEMBERS

Member Initial Capital Contribution
Abundant Estate Holdings, LLC $1
DCC Holdings, LLC $1

23



4/29/24, 1:04 PM qPublic.net - Pickens County, SC - Report: R0094349

Pickens County, SC

Summary

Parcel Number 4088-15-64-9389
Account Number R0094349
Location Address 109 WILEY ERD

Account Status A
Account Type Purged MH
Property Type Mobile Home
Subdivision
LEA Code 0010
Zoning
Tax District A12-Liberty
Business name R13370
Local No
Lot No
Acres 0.9900
Property Description N/SIDE CAMPGROUND RD PLAT 44/93 P/O PLAT 617/71
Extension
View Map
New Search

Owner
Your Choice Home Buyers LLC
9 Rosemary Ln

Greenville, SC 296150000

Assessment Appeal Process
Would you like to submit an appeal for the assessment of this property? Click Here for more information.

Documents
Sale Doc Vacant or
Sale Date Price Type Book Page Improved Grantor Grantee
02/13/2024 $0 MHTR 2658/ 151 Vacant YOUR CHOICE HOME BUYERS LLC YOUR CHOICE HOME BUYERS LLC
01/30/2024 $78,000 ATI 2639/ 105 Vacant MILES CRYSTAL A JOHNSON; MILES CRYSTALA YOUR CHOICE HOME BUYERS LLC
JOHNSON, AS TRUSTEE FOR BEARDEN et al.
09/08/2023 $0 AddRef 2581/ 232 Vacant ILES CHRISTINA: AKERS ANDREW NELSON MILES CRYSTAL A JOHNSON: MILES
CRYSTAL A JOHNSON TRUSTEE;
12/05/2022 $0 PLAT 617 71  Vacant
09/03/1987 $0 PLAT 44 93  Vacant
Land
Description Acres
6% Land Mobile Home Site 0.99

https://qpublic.schneidercorp.com/Application.aspx?ApplD=927&LayerlD=18058&PageTypelD=4&PagelD=80778&Q=140505697 &KeyValue=R0094349

12



4/29/24, 1:04 PM

Buildings

Building No.

Occupancy
Description
HVAC
Foundation
Roof Type
Roof Cover

Map

1

6% Mobile Home
Mobile Home
Heat Pump

Gable
Composition Shingle

qPublic.net - Pickens County, SC - Report: R0094349

Square Feet 1152
Stories 1

Built As Double Wide
Year Built 2003
Exterior Vinyl Siding
Width 24

Length 48

No data available for the following modules: Valuation by Year, Notice of Value, Mobile Homes.

User Privacy Policy

https://qpublic.schneidercorp.conVAppIication.aspx?ApplD=927&LayerID=18058&PageTypeID=4&PagelD=8077&Q=140505697&KeyVa|ue=R0094349

GDPR Privacy Notice
Last Data Upload: 4/29/2024, 12:50:51 PM

© Schnsider

2/2



100 PERCENT PETITION FORM

TO THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LIBERTY:

The undersigned, being 100 percent of the freeholders owning 100 percent of the
assessed value of the property in the contiguous territory described below and shown
on the attached plat or map, hereby petition for annexation of said territory to the City of
Liberty by ordinance effective as soon as hereafter as possible, pursuant to South
Carolina Section 5-3-150(3).

The territory to be annexed is described as follows: Hoa7 - 00 ~54-.776 ¢
as shown on Pickens County GIS map and shown as Exhibit “A” attached.

Signature%,.m /MM(must owner or authorized agent )
Print NameZ//ZQ éé’%/“é /jd’)// Date "//075’/9‘%

Signature: (must be owner or authorized agent)
Print Name: Date
Street Address of PropertyO?O/ ﬂZe (AN SH - , Liberty, SC 29671

ABOVE PORTION MUST BE COMPLETELY FILLED OUT BY VERIFIED OWNER

Jedededededde gk de ke kg ke kdkdedkddkhkdkhkhkhkhdkhkhkhkkkkhkkkhkhikhkkkkkjRkhhkhkkkrhhkhhhhkhhhkhkhkhhhhkhrhkhhkkhkhhhhhhkkhkkkrkkkdr

FOR MUNICIPAL USE

Petition received b /6/ Date: C]’ / 0'{ 6/ 0?<7’
Description and Ownership Verified by ﬂ/z m Date:  f-26-2Y

Recommendation: Council to annex property into City of Liberty,

tobe zoned: — 500 - Low Oeﬂf,‘f/ Aesidow bl Drstaiet

By: ﬂﬁpﬂ Date: f/ﬁ/ﬂ‘{
First Reading Date Second Reading Date
Approved Denied

(Date) (Date)



CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
ORDINANCE #2024-03

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, ANNEXING
INTO THE CITY LIMITS A PARCEL OF CONTIGUOUS REAL PROPERTY LOCATED AT 201 REEVES
STREET (TMS #4097-00-54-7766).

WHEREAS, Elizabeth Nelson, the 100% freeholder of a parcel of real property located at 201
Reeves Street, situated in Pickens County, South Carolina, encompassing approximately .9220
acres, and bearing TMS # 4097-00-54-7766 (the “Property”), has filed a petition for annexation
with the City of Liberty; and,

WHEREAS, the Property is contiguous to and abuts real property located within the City of
Liberty; and,

WHEREAS, pursuant to S.C. Code §5-3-150(3), any area or property that is contiguous to a
municipality may be annexed by that municipality upon receipt of a petition signed by 100
percent of the freeholders of that area or property; and,

WHEREAS, the Liberty City Council has received and carefully considered the Property’s
freeholder petition; and,

WHEREAS, it appearing in the best interests of the City, its residents, and businesses, as well as
the City’s future residents and businesses, for the Property to be annexed into the City limits;
and,

NOW THEREFORE, it is hereby found, decided, declared, and ordained by the City Council of the
City of Liberty, South Carolina, duly assembled and with a quorum present, that:

1. The recitals above are incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein;

2. The Property is contiguous to, touches directly and substantially upon, and shares a
common boundary with property located within the City limits of the City of Liberty;

3. The Property is located in a geographically unified area in relation to the City and to the
property within the City that it abuts;

4. The Property is located in the City’s water service area;



5. Once annexed, the City shall provide such City services to the Property as are available,
required, and/or are desired by the freeholder;

6. The City hereby accepts the petition and declares as annexed the Property so as to bring
the parcel within the City limits of the City of Liberty, South Carolina; and,

7. The Property shall be zoned as/g 00 - IUV‘/ da"glﬂ lZCSfd(h'f’ml

IT IS SO ORDAINED this the day of , 2024,

ATTEST:

Bailee Locke, Clerk of Council Erica Romo Woods, Mayor
First reading: ,2024

Second reading: , 2024




' Pickens County, SC

Overview

b
Legend

Parcels
911 Address
Municipalities
== Roads

Parcel ID 4097-00-54-7766 Account Residential Ownership NELSON Documents
Account No R0O080581 Type ELIZABETH Date Price Doc Vacant or
Property 201 REEVES ST Class 1 Story 201 REEVES Improved
Address LIBERTY Acreage 0.922 ST 5/10/2022 $195,500 2401//123 Improved
District A12-Liberty LEA 0018 LIBERTY, SC 5/2/2018 $1 1959//283 Improved
Brief PLAT 58/523 PLAT 31/245 Code 29657-0000
Tax Description LOT 34 Value  $195,500

(Note: Not to be used on
legal documents)

Date created: 5/1/2024
Last Data Uploaded: 5/1/2024 4:33:53 AM

Developed by" Schneider

GEOSPATIAL



LIBERTY POLICE DEPARTMENT

Adam C. Gilstrap P.O. Box 716 Victor C. Tetter
Chief of Police 147b Kay Holcombe Road Captain
agilstrap@libertypd.org Liberty, SC 29657 vtetter@libertypd.org

Phone (864) 843-3956

Monthly Totals
April 2024

Warnings Issued- 213
Citations Issued- 177

Total Arrested- 12

Two for Possession with Intent to Distribute Marijuana

One for Petit Larceny

Two for Assault and Battery 3™ Degree

One for DUI and Left of Center

One for Operating Uninsured, Operating Unregistered Vehicle, Fail to Stop for Blue Lights and DUS 2nd
One for DUS 3™

One for Disorderly Conduct

One for Poss. Controlled Substance, Possession with Intent to Distribute Meth, Poss. Adulterant Urine, Simple
Poss. Marijuana and No SCDL in Possession

One for Simple Possession Marijuana 2", Possession of Controlled Substance 2"d Possession with Intent to
Distribute Meth 2™, Possession with Intent to Distribute Heroin and Possession of Adulterant Urine

One for Disregarding Stop Sign, Resisting Arrest, No SCDL, Failure to return DL and Operating Uninsured

Citations
See attached.



TRAFFIC TICKET TOTALS
All Tickets (Including DUI)

‘rom Date of Arrest 04/01/2024 To 04/30/2024

15/06/2024 All Records Page: 1
T ———— — ——— ——— ———__________________ S =

Total for Offense : 42

_—eeeee——————————
)1 SEATBELT VIOLATION

Total for Offense 01: 52

_—
)2 POSSESSION OF DRUG PARAPHERNALIA

Total for Offense 02: 7

—_———eeseeeeee——————————
)8 UNLAWFUL USE OF COMMUNICATION DEVICE

Total for Offense 08: 1

—_—eeee—————————————
17 OPERATING UNINSURED VEHICLE

Total for Offense 17: 1

—_— e —— e
20 TOO FAST FOR CONDITIONS

Total for Offense 20: 2

—_— e
21 SPEEDING OR TOO FAST FOR CONDITIONS (<= 10MPH)

Total for Offense 21: 1

—_—
26 LIGHTS IMPROPER

Total for Offense 26: 1

—_—
45 WRONG SIDE OF ROAD

Total for Offense 45: 1

R S
46 PASSING UNLAWFULLY

Total for Offense 46: 1

—_—
47 TURNING UNLAWFULLY

Total for Offense 47: 1

———eeee
4B FOLLOWING TOO CLOSELY




TRAFFIC TICKET TOTALS
All Tickets (Including DUI)

m Date of Arrest 04/01/2024 To 04/30/2024
)6/2024 All Records Page: 2

Total for Offense 4B: 1

—_——e—————————
SPEEDING MORE THAN 10--

Total for Offense 4X: 2

—_——
SPEEDING MORE THAN 15--

Total for Offense 4Y: 28
—___—-—————__——__-_———————
OTHER MOVING VIOLATION
Total for Offense 82: 2

—_—eeeee————
DRIVER LICENSE VIOLATION

Total for Offense 87: 6

_—eeee
VEHICLE LICENSE VIOLATION

Total for Offense 89: 6

—_——eeeeee—————————————
OTHER VIOLATIONS

Total for Offense 94: 5

—_———ese e
DRIVING UNDER SUSPENSION

Total for Offense 96: 7

—_— e
DRIVING UNDER THE INFLUENCE '

Total for Offense 99: 1

S
I NON-TRAFFIC OFFENSES

Total for Offense NT: 9
ﬁ

Total for Report: 177



PWD/Utility report for the month oApri L0 2t

Trash pick up
Cérdboérd pick up
Brush pick up
Brc;gw‘nmégods pick up

Main breaks

Métgr rep lacements
New taps
Sewer

Méiri breaks
New taps

Misc Items

tons
tons
loads

tons




CITY OF

LIBERTY

Liberty Parks & Recreation
City Council Report

1) Continuing to work on lighting at Mills Ave. % is completed.

2) New Sponsorship banner (2)

3) Maintain all Parks and Recreation grounds and facilities.

4) Rental of city stadium for this month (2)

5) Rental of Rosewood center / parking lot () Animal Vet.

6) Rental of Mills Ave (4) Travel Basketball

7) Rental of City Gym (4) Travel Basketball

8) Hosted a Volleyball Tournament

9) SHP bed Build was successful.

10)  Tee Ball, Softball and Baseball seasons are going well.

11) Spring Sports photo was successful.

12) Hosted a Flag football jamboree.

13) 8U soccer has ended and the team did very well.

14)  Will host Flag football end of season tournament Starting May 11, -
May 16

15) Hosted a volleyball camp.

16) Spoke with high school football coach about Football camp on May
28" and May 30

17)  Will host diamond day on May 18" at Little league park. Along with
adult softball game at 4pm

119 W. Front St « P.O. Box 716 « Liberty, SC 29657 * Phone (864)843-3177 « Fax (864)843-9400



